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QUESTIONS - ANSWERS - CLARIFICATIONS 
 

FRENCH CAMP ROAD/I-5 INTRCHANGE 
PROJECT NO. 99-01/FEDERAL PROJECT NO. STPIMDL-5008(116) 

 
 
 
Does this project provide payment for Adjustments for Price Index Fluctuations for 
Asphalt Concrete? 
 
No. 
 
What are the funding sources for construction of this project? 
 
Federal, State, and Measure K funds. No City General Funds are being used for 
construction. 
 
ITEM #123, of the Bid item List 1524mm CIDH SIGN STRUCTURE "Log of Test 
Borings" for As-built structures are quite old.  They may not be representative of existing 
conditions.   Please provide current drill logs, water table elevations, and Geotechnical 
recommendations for the Sign Structure CIDH locations. 
 
The geotechnical engineer has already consulted with Caltrans on this matter.  It was 
determined that the existing pile driving data was sufficient to supplement the existing 
Log of Test Borings for the project site, and that additional subsurface exploration was 
not necessary.   
 
Please refer to the geotechnical engineer’s response to comment letter dated March 15, 
2007, located in Appendix A of the October 3, 2011, Geotechnical Report.  The existing 
pile driving data can be found in Appendix B. 
 
As shown on Plan sheet C-11, Rock slope protection (Light), with qty as shown on 
Sheet Q-1. Where is this paid for?   
 
This item is added to the Bid Item List.    
 
Has the pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet been posted to the web site? If not, can it be e-
mailed? 
 
Yes, the pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet has been uploaded to the web site. 
 
As follow-up on the questions asked at the pre-bid meeting:  Will the City be adding the 
UDBE information and the required UDBE forms needed to be submitted to the 
specifications for the contractors use?   
 
No. UDBE forms are already referenced to the Bid Forms.  

Date Last Updated: 
7/19/12 
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Secondly, on the questions of funding for the project, please follow-up on the 
City’s/Measure K Renewal portions funding and the status of said funds (will these 
funds be setup in an escrow account(s) before the contract is signed? Has Measure K 
Renewal funds been appropriated?  
    
Measure K Renewal funds will not be set-up in the escrow account. No City General 
Funds are being used for construction of this project.  The Measure K Renewal funds 
will be appropriated during the time of awarding the contract.   
 
Caltrans projects normally contain a payment adjustment for price index fluctuations for 
asphalt materials in pavement structural sections and pavement surface treatments due 
to the duration and volatility of the asphalt material market.  As a large portion of the 
paving for this project occurs in the latter phase of this project, it would benefit the City 
to add the index to benchmark the asphalt material pricing.  Will this indexing be added?  
      
No. 
 
Is there an informational handout that contains the geotechnical information for the 1524 
MM CIDH for the sign structure?  If not, will that information be provided to the bidders? 
  
The geotechnical engineer has already consulted with Caltrans on this matter.  It was 
determined that the existing pile driving data was sufficient to supplement the existing 
Log of Test Borings for the project site, and that additional subsurface exploration was 
not necessary.   
 
Please refer to the geotechnical engineer’s response to comment letter dated March 15, 
2007, located in Appendix A of the October 3, 2011, Geotechnical Report.  The existing 
pile driving data can be found in Appendix B. 
  
When will Manthey Road Relocation be completed?  
       
December 31, 2012. 
 
Item #19 is listed as Lump Sum.  Will that be changed to per day with a defined number 
of days? 
        
The defined number of days for this item is 38.  
 
Specifications (page 157), states that for a Level 2 or 3 SWPPP construction site, that 
the owner will pay $500 per REAP.  Will a bid item be added for this work? 
 
The project is Risk Level 1, therefore no REAP is needed, and no bid item will be 
added. The language regarding REAP requirements for Level 2 or 3 projects is standard 
and is included, regardless of the project level.  
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      Please define “in-stream” area for slough work. 
              

The “in-stream” area for slough work includes all components of the stream, including 
the channel, bed, banks, and floodplains.  The “in-stream” area is the land, including 
vegetation, that bounds the channel of the stream and that defines the lateral extent of 
its waters.  The “in-stream” work entails minimizing disturbance to the existing stream 
while performing work to stabilize the stream bank as shown on sheets C-11 and L-8.  
Other work includes pile driving and temporary work trestles. 

Plan sheet 375 of 410 Note #2 states “False work system shall provide 4.570 M 
minimum temporary vertical clearance.”  4.570 M is 15.0 feet.  Special Provision 
Section 10-1.28, Maintaining Traffic, specifies 4.6 M of vertical clearance.  Please 
revise SP Section 10-1.28 to 4.570 M clearance.  In the case of this bridge, there is 
such little room for false work and, as such, we ask that the room for false work not be 
further reduced by rounding a metric dimension.           

SP Section 10-1.28 has been amended per LOC No. 1. 

Reference is made to SP Section 10-1.68, Piling, which states “Piles driven within 
15.2 meters (50 ft) of existing structures may result in vibration-induced distress to 
these structures.  Prior to pile driving, existing structures should be evaluated by a 
structural engineer to….” Please confirm that the existing highway structures which 
are being widened are not subject to this specification.  Please also confirm that there 
are no existing non-highway structures within 15.2 meters (50 ft) of any of the contract 
pile locations. 

This specification does not apply to existing I-5/French Camp UC and Slough bridge 
structures. For other existing non-highway structures within 50ft limits of proposed pile 
driving, contractor to field verify prior to bidding. 

Reference is made to SP Section 5-1.07, Maintaining Public Convenience and 
Safety, which states “hours of work on local roads will be limited to between 8 AM 
and 4 PM.”  We understand that to mean only that work which requires lane closures 
on the local roads.  This restriction would not apply to work on or adjacent to local 
roads that does not require lane closures.  Please confirm.  Please also consider 
adding 0.5 hour to the 8 AM to 4 PM window so you do not have to pay 8 hours for 
7.5 hours of work. 

The restriction only applies to work which requires lane closures on the local roads.  
Work can be done outside of the hours of 8 AM and 4 PM on or adjacent to local 
roads that does not require lane closures.  No additional time will be added to the 8 
AM to 4 PM window.  

 

Reference is made to SP Section 5-1.27, Construction Staking, which deletes 
Caltrans Standard Specification 5-1.07, Lines and Grades, and replaces it with the 
given specification.  The given specification is silent with regard to structure staking 
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(bridge and retaining walls).  We ask that SP Section 5-1.27 be revised to include 
structure staking per the Caltrans Staking Manual. 

SP Section 5-1.27 has been revised to include bridge and retaining walls staking per 
LOC No. 1. 

Reference is made to SP (no section number indicated) page 352 Architectural 
Surface (Textured Concrete), it is stated “Total casting events shall be finished in eight 
(8) days; the Contractor will be responsible for paying the change order if the casting 
takes more than eight days.”  Please clarify this statement. 

When these special provisions were written, which was prior to bid opening, certain 
assumptions had to be made. These assumptions would define how many people it 
would take, and the associated costs for their work, to stamp the slope walls. As you 
see in this particular provision, we anticipated that the contractor would cast every other 
section of the slope wall in a day, and that they would need no more than eight 
consecutive days to complete the entire slope wall fabrication.  For this part of the job 
we estimated that two Creative Form Liner employees will work alongside the contractor 
in order to stamp the slope wall as its being constructed.  The labor and out-of-pocket 
expenses to do this portion of the job include food and lodging, car rental, etc. for two 
people. However, if there are construction delays that prevent us from completing our 
part of the project in that time frame, Creative Form Liner will need to be compensated 
for the labor and additional aforementioned costs, for an undisclosed period of time, in 
order to complete our portion of the job.  

Bidder Inquiry:  “Please consider the following inquiry regarding the above referenced 
project and kindly respond in writing.  The bid proposal does not identify any of the bid 
items as final pay quantity items.  Please revise bid proposal to make Item #65 thru 69, 
98 thru 102, 113, 114, 139, 145, 161, 162 final pay quantity items, as is customary on 
Caltrans highway work.” 

The Bid Item List has been amended to identify final pay items per LOC No. 1.  

Bid item #95 and #96 are for Class 400 piles, but there are two distinctly different types 
of Class 400 piles required on this project.  Class 400 (Alternate X) are at the 
Undercrossing and Class 400 (Alternate Y) are at the Slough Bridge.  Please revise the 
description and quantities of Bid Items #95 and #96 to Class 400 (Alternate X) and also 
add bid items to the bid schedule for Class 400 (Alternate Y) work. 

Class 400 (Alternative X) will be used at the Undercrossing.  At the  Slough Bridge, 
Class 400 (Alternative Y) is specified at the abutment locations only.  Class 400  piles 
will be used at the Bent locations with shape to match existing piles that are above 
ground.  All pile data can be found on pages 13 and 14 of the Foundation report (LOC 
No. 1).  Enough details, quantities are provided for contractor to bid as they are. 
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Also, I noticed on the bid schedule in the proposal and the bid schedule in the 
specifications, both did NOT indicate any "F" next to the items that are usually Final 
Pay Items.   Are there no "Final Pay items in the bid schedule? Or is there somewhere 
that indicates which items are final pay? 

 

Yes, there are “Final Pay” items in the bid schedule per LOC No. 1.   

 

Highway widening project in this area typically have contaminated such as aerially 
deposited lead (ADL).  Can the City of Stockton please forward any information 
regarding ADL?  Also, please add any additional information required to pay the 
Contractor to handle this task. 

 
Information regarding ADL can be found in the Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
and Limited Hazardous Materials Assessment, Soil Sampling and Analysis, French 
Camp Road and I-5 Interchange document, dated May 30, 2007.  Information for 
handling earth material containing lead and compensation for doing so can be found in 
the contract special provisions, section 10-1.45. 

 
Section 5-1.55.5 Asbestos: Our question is how is the contractor to estimate the cost for 
the work described in this item when the very existence of this material is 
questionable?  What is the material? What is the quantity of material to be removed? In 
what condition is this material, friable or solid? What method will be used to remove the 
material? Where is the material to be disposed of? Who will be the designated owner of 
the material? What specific protection measures for removal and disposal will be 
required depends on the type of material and its consistency which is unknown at this 
time. How can the contractor institute administrative or engineering controls to achieve 
compliance with regulatory agencies when the substance and exposure levels are 
unknown. How long will it take to receive authorization from the EPA indicating an 
approved disposal site for the material? Will this time be added to contract time?  Will 
the contractor be awarded Time Related Overhead (TRO) for any subsequent delay? 
These are questions that must be answered before any costs can be determined for this 
work. Would it not be beneficial to the City to establish an allowance for all contractors 
to include in their estimate and stipulate that if the allowance is exceeded that the 
remainder of the work would be performed on a force account basis? 

 
No known asbestos sites are located within project limits. However, there are known 
recorded asbestos sites located near the southbound off-ramp. See DTSC Report of 
recorded asbestos site located near the project. 

 
Can the City of Stockton please add any BMP pay items that will be required to handle 
any specific contaminants known to exist or discovered at the site (such as asbestos). 

 
No BMP pay items will be added.  See above response. 
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Can the City please address that issue of the existing hawk (bird) that was found near 
the site of your existing Sperry Road project.  We are interested to find out how long we 
should include delay required to deal with the hawk (bird). 

 
Nesting seasons can be found in the applicable environmental special provisions and 
permits.  The Sperry nesting event falls within that time frame. 
 
Can the City please forward the schedule for the existing Sperry Road project?  We 
need to figure out if there are “impact costs” associated with the existing contract. 
 
The revised Order of Work special provision addresses the interface between the two 
projects.  The current contractual completion date is early 10/13 with a projected 
completion date of 6/13. 

 
We are in the understanding that the City of Stockton has hired Parson Brinkerhoff (PB) 
as the Construction Manager (CM) for this project; 
 
Can the City of Stockton please confirm who the CM for the project is going to be? 
 
Can the City please indicate the names of the CM personnel that will be administrating 
this contract?  This information is required from PB as their involvement will require 
additional cost for us to administrate this contract from our end. 

 
PB will be the CM with Greg Aldrich as the Resident Engineer. 

 
Specification section 5-1.27 refers to construction staking provided by the City of 
Stockton. Will the City please clarify if the City is going to provide the staking for any 
underground water and storm drain system construction within the City of Stockton 
Right of Way? 

 
Specification section 5-1.27 has been removed (per LOC No. 1).  All staking will be 
performed by the City per the Caltrans Staking Manual for all construction within the 
project limits, regardless of right of way. 

 
Will the City provide construction staking for the installation of any underground systems 
outside the City Right of Way, specifically any work in the Cal Trans or County Right of 
Way? 

 
The City will provide all construction staking per the Caltrans Staking Manual for all 
construction within the project limits, regardless of the right of way. 
 
What is the cost for the City of Stockton MUD discharge permit for the discharge of the 
water used in the testing and disinfecting of the new water lines referred to in Section 5-
1.55.2 last paragraph? 
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No cost for the discharge permit of the water used  for testing and disinfecting of the 
new water lines.   

 
Where will the discharge manholes be located? 

 
Contractor should coordinate with the City of Stockton MUD for the specific manhole 
location during construction as part of the permitting process. 
 

 
Will the City of Stockton pay the costs associated with concrete testing? 

 
No. See Section 6-3.02 of the Standard Specifications. 

 
Will the City of Stockton pay the cost associated with Construction Water? 

 
No. Cost is included in the bid item for “Develop Water Supply”. 

 
 

Will the welding of the steel irrigation crossover pipe be subject to the QC/QA 
requirements for welding per section 8-3.01? 

 
Yes. 

 
Drawing D-16 shows the 609mm “highline bypass pipe” to be steel with restraints. Is 
this to be a welded steel line per section 10-1.89? What type of restraint system will you 
require with the welded joints? Are these restraints only to be place on the bends? 
 
Specification Section 10-1.89 is not intended for the Temporary High Line as shown on 
Sheet U-16.  Contractor may propose the type of restraint system.  The type of restraint 
system needs to be acceptable to the Engineer and the City of Stockton MUD.  All joints 
are to be restrained per Sheet U-16 and Specification Section 5-1.56.3. 
 
Will the steel bypass line if welded be subject to the QC/QA per section 8-3.01? 

 
Yes. 

 
Section 10-1.87 paragraph four—“Ductile Iron Pipe shall pass a hydrostatic test of not 
less than 3,450 kPa (500 psi) with the pipe under the full test pressure for at least 10 
seconds.”  It is my understanding that the ductile iron pipe is tested at the point of 
manufacture for 5 seconds at 500# pressure. However the gasket and bell housing of 
the pipe is not tested or rated to be placed under this pressure for 10 seconds. The full 
pipe joint is rated to withstand 500# thrust for approximately 1 second but not 10 
seconds. Since the pipe is tested at the manufacturer will a certificate from the 
manufacture of this test be sufficient? The pipeline would then be tested per industry 
standards for the remainder of the test. 
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The certificate needs to certify for the test condition as stated in the specification.  The 
meaning of the term “industry standards” is unclear.  If the question is referring to the 
pipe’s field pressure and leakage test, refer to Specifications 5-1.55 and 5-1.56, where 
the specification reads – “Water main ...  flushing, testing and disinfection shall comply 
with the requirements in Section 76-1.03 of the City of Stockton Standard 
Specifications…” 

 
SECTION 10-1.85 for Reinforced Concrete Pipe refers to Caltrans standard A62D for 
trench backfill. However, the backfill and compaction requirements for the specification 
on drawing DD-6 is different than the requirements of A62D for  both trench width, 
bedding, compaction and backfill material type. Which specification are we to follow for 
the installation of this type of pipe? 

 
Work done within Caltrans right of way will conform to Caltrans standard plan A62D.  
Work done within City right of way will conform to the detail on drawing DD-6.  

 
What type of material are the existing waterlines? 

 
The 609mm waterline along French Camp Road under I-5 overpass is Ductile Iron pipe, 
as shown on Sheet U-16.  The 457mm waterline along Manthey Road is Ductile Iron 
pipe. 

 
If the existing waterlines are asbestos cement, will the City pay for the removal on a 
force account basis? 

 
The existing waterlines are not asbestos cement.  See response above. 

 
Due to the dollar magnitude of these questions we would also like for the City of 
Stockton to push the bid back in order to have ample time to properly prepare our bid 
proposal? Also, since the City of Stockton has not tied the DBE to this contract please 
push the bid date back to properly advertise the project. This is needed to properly 
prepare our subcontractors and suppliers of this information.  
 

The City will not push the bid back.  UDBE forms are already referenced to the Bid 
Forms.  
 

What are the specifications for bid item 192 (GRAFFITI REMOVAL)? Is this to be 
weekly?, monthly?, at engineers discretion?, or at job completion?    

Graffiti removal shall occur every six months for the life of the project, and one final 
removal shall be conducted at contract acceptance. 

What are the locations for Anti-graffiti coating to be applied?   Is it placed immediately 
after the concrete has cured?   Will it have to be re-applied after item 192 takes place? 
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Special Provision section 10-1.83 states, “This work includes applying anti-graffiti 
coating to concrete surfaces… Apply anti-graffiti coating under the manufacturer’s 
recommendations in at least 2 even coats.”  The coating will have to be reapplied after 
each graffiti removal. 

Where does Facing rock get paid? 

Please provide more specific information to your question. 

How many sets of form liner for the wingwalls is the City providing?  I am assuming 
the City is providing two sets. 
 

According to the document “Specifications and Special Provisions for the architectural 
surface,” prepared by Creative Form Liner (CFL), the City’s architectural designer, four 
(4) form liner sets shall be provided for use on the wingwalls. 
 

Referencing the same section above, is the City supplying the stamp patterns for the 
slope paving?   
 

CFL will provide stamp patterns to the contractor through the City. 

 

Why is there a requirement for the work to be done in 8 days?   

We anticipated that the contractor would cast every other section of the slope wall in a 
day, and that they would need no more than eight consecutive days to complete the 
entire slope wall fabrication.  For this part of the job we estimated that two Creative 
Form Liner employees will work alongside the contractor in order to stamp the slope 
wall as its being constructed.  The labor and out-of-pocket expenses to do this portion of 
the job include food and lodging, car rental, etc for two people. However, if there are 
construction delays that prevent us from completing our part of the project in that time 
frame, Creative Form Liner will need to be compensated for the labor and additional 
aforementioned costs, for an undisclosed period of time, in order to complete our 
portion of the job.  

Is the City performing some part of the slope paving work?  If so, please clarify what the 
City’s portion is. 

We estimated that two CFL (the City’s architectural designer) employees will work 
alongside the contractor in order to stamp the slope wall as its being constructed.   

On pages 24/25, in section 5-1.04 – Contractor is required to include is their bid, the 
costs for these permits.  Please evaluate the costs and include an allowance item for 
permits.   This way, the contractor may draw on this item for them as needed, and any 
monies not used, will not be spent, and will still be the property of COS.  At least all 
contractors will have your required amount included.  
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The City will not provide an allowance item for permits.  It is the Contractor’s 
responsibility to bid on these items as accurately as possible. 

Staking per 5.127 – This section states that the City will provide the staking for areas 
within the C.O.S. right of way.  Who does the staking within Cal-Trans ROW? 
Waterline staking within the Stockton MUD? 

The City. 

On page 62, contractor is to pay for a water discharge permit fee to Stockton MUD, 
what is this dollar value? 

No cost for the discharge permit of the water used for testing and disinfecting of the new 
water lines.   

Bid item #19 – The description is in days, yet the quantity is 1 LS, please change to 
days and provide the # of days which we are to bid. 

The defined number of days for this item is 38. 

Section 10-1.06 states there is a bid item for “contractor supplied biologist” and Section 
10-1.07 states there is a bid item for the water quality monitoring required during in-
water activities.  Is an addendum being issued to add these bid items?  If not, how is 
this work paid? 

Bid items for Water Quality Sampling and Analysis Day and Water Quality Monitoring 
Report, per the “Payment “ section of special provision 10-1.07, has been added to the 
bid item list.  Contractor Supplied Biologist has also been added to the bid item list, per 
the “Measurement and Payment” section of special provision 10-1.06. 

Questions, Answered and Clarifications - answers dated 7-16-12 specified that there 
are “no known asbestos sites are located within project limits. However, there are 
known recorded asbestos sites located near the southbound off-ramp”.  
 
Our interpretation of the Specification is that Contractor is responsible for all cost 
associated with the removal of asbestos from the site, if found. 

 

The Contractor is responsible for the cost associated with the removal of asbestos that 
may be encountered during the relocation of the 457 mm water line, per special 
provision section 5-1.55. 
 
We need the City of Stockton to be responsible for any and all asbestos abatement 
costs for any asbestos or hazardous materials which may be discovered during the 
course of the work? 
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The City of Stockton shall be responsible for asbestos abatement costs only if unknown 
asbestos is found elsewhere on the project (other than what is currently denoted on 
contract documents.)   In the event that unknown asbestos is encountered, Section 13 
of the Instructions to Bidders will apply. 
 
Thus we request the current specification section regarding asbestos be removed from 
the specifications. 
 
The current specification regarding asbestos will not be removed from the 
specifications. 
 
If the City of Stockton elects to keep said specification please include an allowance item 
so all Contractors bidding the project will be on the same page. 
 
The City of Stockton shall be responsible for asbestos abatement costs only if unknown 
asbestos is found elsewhere on the project (other than what is currently denoted on 
contract documents.)   In the event that unknown asbestos is encountered, Section 13 
of the Instructions to Bidders will apply. 
  
Also, if allowance goes over budget please add language that the City of Stockton will 
compensate the Contractor via force account.     
 
The City of Stockton shall be responsible for asbestos abatement costs only if unknown 
asbestos is found elsewhere on the project (other than what is currently denoted on 
contract documents.)   In the event that unknown asbestos is encountered, Section 13 
of the Instructions to Bidders will apply. 
 
Bid item #145 pays for the bridge deck drainage system. How many feet of deck drain 
pipe past the abutment is included in that item? Please clarify.. 
 
In what item would any deck drain pipe past the tie in point in and continuing into the 
roadwork drainage system be paid? 

Bid item #145 for the bridge deck drainage system includes quantity for undercrossing 
and slough bridge.  The quantity is calculated within the bridge limit only, no road drains 
are included.   At undercrossing, deck drain outlet is located at the end of abutment 
stem wall and connects to road drains as shown on sheet 381, 382,,389, and sheet 
392.  At slough bridge, deck drain is calculated to include 1.5 meter beyond the end of 
the wingwall then connects to road drains as shown on sheet 397 and 407.   

The gutter that is shown on the top of RW3 is not shown on the minor concrete quantity 
sheet.  How will this item be paid? 
 
The quantity for the gutter on top of RW3 will be added to the Minor Concrete 
(Miscellaneous Construction) table on sheet Q-3.  The bid item list will be updated to 
reflect this quantity change. 
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The 0.1 meter coping shown on the top of MSE is not shown on the minor concrete 
quantity sheet.  How will this item be paid for? 
 
The 0.1 meter coping on the top of the MSE is fully compensated into the price per 
square meter of the bid item “Reinforced MSE Wall.”  This is explained in the 
Measurement and Payment clause of special provision Section 10-1.78 “Reinforced 
Mechanically Stabilized Earth (MSE) Retaining Wall.” 
 
LOC#1 has not been issued as of today, can the City please address? Again, we must 
ask for a bid date extension! Pretty please…. 
 
The City will not push back the bid opening date. 
 
Since the City has filed a bankruptcy petition, and the list of creditors included in the 
City’s bankruptcy filing includes a significant number of construction industry creditors, 
what assurances can the City provide bidders that all necessary funds are available and 
committed to pay the successful bidder in a timely manner, including funds which must 
be provided by the City? 
 
See attached letter from the City Manager dated June 25, 2012. 
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